
          

 

 

PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AUGUST 17, 2022 
4:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.palmbeachplantationcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

AGENDA 
PALM BEACH PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Palm Beach Plantation Clubhouse 

8751 Palm Beach Plantation Boulevard 
Royal Palm Beach, Florida 33411 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

August 17, 2022 
4:00 p.m. 

 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. May 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing………………………………………….Page 3 

G. Old Business 

1. Discussion on Lake Level Issue……………………………………………………………………Page 7 

2. Discussion on Erosion Issues 

3. Discussion on Dodd Frank Act Effecting Palm Beach Plantation CDD 
H. New Business 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Update……………………………………………………………………………………Page 8 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 

 



Page 1



Page 2



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
MAY 18, 2022 

 

  

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Michael McElligott called to order the Regular Board Meeting of the 
Palm Beach Plantation Community Development District of May 18, 2022, at 4:03 p.m. 
in the Palm Beach Plantation Clubhouse located at 8751 Palm Beach Plantation 
Boulevard, Royal Palm Beach, Florida 33411.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. McElligott presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting 
had been published in The Palm Beach Post on April 28, 2022, and May 5, 2022, as 
legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Present and constituting a quorum were Chairman Russell Warnet, Vice Chairman 
Richard Feltz and Supervisors Richard Brackett, and Robert Vey. 
 
Staff in attendance were District Managers Michael McElligott of Special District 
Services, Inc., Engineer Matthew Kahn of Caulfield & Wheeler Inc., and District Counsel 
Scott Cochran of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.  
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  March 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. McElligott presented the minutes of the March 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and 
asked if there were any changes or corrections. There were none. 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Brackett, seconded by Mr. Feltz, that the minutes of the 
March 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting be approved. Upon being put to a vote, the 
motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 

Page 3



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
MAY 18, 2022 

 

  

 
The public hearing was opened at 4:04 p.m.  
 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Mr. McElligott presented proof of publication that notice of the Public Hearing had been 
published in The Palm Beach Post on April 28, 2022, and May 5, 2022, as legally 
required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Final Budget 
 
Mr. McElligott presented Resolution No. 2022-02, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING A 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET.  

 
Mr. McElligott presented the budget and explained that this is the same budget the Board 
had approved as a proposed budget. Mr. Brackett asked for some clarification on the 
reserve calculation, which Mr. McElligott was able to provide. 
 
After a brief discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Feltz, seconded by Mr. Brackett and 
passed unanimously to adopt Resolution No. 2022-02, as presented. 
 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1. Discussion on Lake Level Issue 
 
Mr. McElligott refreshed the Board on the lake level issue discussed at previous 
meetings. District Engineer, Matthew Kahn gave some possible explanations of factors 
that could lead to the levels being seen. Some of these could be natural factors out of the 
districts control, some could be infrastructure problems that would need to be fixed. After 
a lengthy discussion, the Board came to a consensus to have Mr. Khan do a simple visual 
inspection of some of the pipes as an inexpensive first step and then report back to the 
Board.  
 

Page 4



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
MAY 18, 2022 

 

  

            2. Discussion on Erosion Issue 
 
Mr. McElligott and Mr. Khan reminded the Board that they had done a lake study in the 
past that identified the likely order of lake bank erosion projects that would need to be 
done based on the estimated condition of the various lakes. During the discussion it was 
decided that it was nearing time to do the next project. Mr. McElligott noted that 
depending on size of the project, there should be funds available in the upcoming year 
from the reserve funds accumulated. The Board authorized Mr. Kahn to do a visual 
inspection of the lakes that would be next in line for the erosion project and report back 
to the Board with his recommendation.  
 
I. NEW BUSINESS  

1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Meeting Schedule 
 
Mr. McElligott presented Resolution No. 2022-03, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PALM BEACH PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING 
SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING THE 
TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. McElligott presented the meeting schedule which is similar to the current meeting 
schedule.  
 
After a brief discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Brackett, seconded by Mr. Vey, and 
passed unanimously to adopt Resolution No. 2022-03, as presented. 
 

2.  Discussion Regarding Dodd Frank Act Effecting Palm Beach Plantation 
CDD 
 
Mr. McElligott refreshed the Board that this question was brought up by Mr. Brackett at a 
previous meeting. Mr. McElligott provided the response from the trustee bank which 
stated that there is nothing in Dodd Frank that could negatively affect the Palm Beach 
Plantation CDD. Mr. Brackett asked Mr. McElligott to specifically ask the trustee about 
“Bail-Ins” mentioned in Dodd Frank. Mr. McElligott will report back the response.  
 

3.  Discussion on Starting Bond Refinance Early 
 

Page 5



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
MAY 18, 2022 

 

  

Mr. McElligott explained that he asked the underwriter about the possibilities of starting 
the process of refinancing the bonds now, instead of waiting. Mr. McElligott shared with 
the Board the underwriters response which shows that the Bond documents do not allow 
for any refinance until 2024, so there is nothing we can do until then.  
 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1. Financial Report 
 
Mr. McElligott presented the financial report in the meeting package.  
 

2. Other Updated 
 
Mr. McElligott also reminded the Board that Form 1s are coming due soon and of the 
qualifying period in June for those seats up this November.  
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments.  
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. 
Brackett, seconded by Mr. Feltz to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 4:57 p.m.  That 
motion carried 4 to 0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Asst. Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair  

Page 6



1

Tricia Lascasas

From: Matthew Kahn <matthew@cwiassoc.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 11:53 AM
To: Michael McElligott
Subject: RE: Palm Beach Plantation CDD pipe inspections

Good morning Michael, 
 
Our inspectors completed their report previously but I asked that they revisit the site to reconfirm a few questions of 
mine. They have now completed that revisit as well. 
 
The first note is that the inspector did not see any difference in lake elevation between the 3 easternmost lakes on Palm 
Beach Plantation. It may still be a good idea to have lake elevation gauges installed in any of the lakes of concern to 
measure actual water elevations to potentially confirm elevation variances. 
 
The inspector did not find any existing pipe plugs or obstructions in any of the lake interconnect pipes interconnecting 
the three easternmost lakes on the project. There was sediment buildup in some of the structure sumps/bottoms but 
not enough to reduce pipe flow between the lakes. Please keep in mind, this inspection was from the surface such that a 
potential break/blockage in pipes between structures would not be readily visible to our inspector. 
 
If the CDD is still concerned with lake elevations, the following are some options to further diagnose the potential issues. 
 

1. Installation of lake elevation gauges in an lakes of concern to measure actual lake water elevations and any 
potential variance between the lakes. 

2. Hiring of a 3rd party pipe cleaning contractor such as Shenandoah who could clean and more importantly CCTV 
the existing pipe interconnects between the structures to determine a potential pipe blockage or break between 
the drainage structures. 

 
Please advise if any questions/comments on the above and feel free to call/email me as needed to discuss. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Matt 
 
Matthew Kahn, P.E. | Project Manager 
matthew@cwiassoc.com | Cell: 561-221-9056 

 

Caulfield & Wheeler, Inc. 
Office: 561-392-1991 | Fax: 561-750-1452 
Boca Office: 7900 Glades Road, Suite 100, Boca Raton, FL 33434 
PSL Office: 410 SE Port Saint Lucie Blvd, Port Saint Lucie, FL 34984 
Website: https://cwi-assoc.com 
Links: https://linktr.ee/cwiassoc 
 

From: Michael McElligott <MMcElligott@sdsinc.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 12:36 PM 
To: Matthew Kahn <matthew@cwiassoc.com> 
Subject: Palm Beach Plantation CDD pipe inspections 
 
Matt,  

Page 7



2

                At the last Board meeting for Palm Beach Plantation CDD the Board had authorized your office to do some 
preliminary inspections for possible clogs in some of the stormwater lakes connecting pipes. Have you had a chance to 
perform that work? I am checking to see if you would have any kind of report, written or verbal, to give the Board if we 
decide to have the meeting later this month. Thanks.  
 
BOARD MEMBERS:  Please do not use the reply all feature of your e-mail as it may be deemed a violation of the Sunshine law.  Please reply only to the management 
office. Thank You. 
 

NOTE:  Under Florida Law, e-mail addresses are public records.  If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public records request, do not send 
electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 

 
Michael McElligott 
 

Special District Services, Inc.  
2501 A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410 
 

Phone: (561) 630‐4922 x 226 
Fax:      (561) 630‐4923 

Page 8



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 

10 YEAR LAKE REMEDIATION PLAN 

 

LAKE NO.    PRIORITY (1 THRU 5)   REMEDIATION YEAR 

#1     4     2029 

#2     5     2031 

#3     5     2032 

#4     1     2024 

#5     2     2025 

#6     COMPLETE    COMPLETE 

#7     3     2026 

#8     1     2023 

#9     3     2027 

#10     4     2030 

#11     3     2028 

#12     5     2033 

Page 9



Page 10


	Palm Beach Plantation Community Development District - August 17, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Discussion on Lake Level Issue
	Financial Update




